

# **Constitution of the Parents' Association 2018**

Provision is made in the Education Act 1998 to allow parents of students of a school to set up a Parents' Association. The Act states that:

The parents of students of a recognized school may establish and maintain from among their number a Parents' Association for the school and membership of that association shall be open to all parents of students of that school.

The Parents' Association in a school works with the principal, staff and board of management to build effective co-operation and partnership between home and school.

#### The role of the Parents' Association is set down in the Education Act 1998 as follows:

A Parents' Association shall promote the interests of the students in a school in co-operation with the board, principal, teachers and students.

The Education Act also sets out two broad tasks for a Parents' Association which are:

- 1. To advise the Principal or the Board on matters relating to the school
- 2. To adopt a program of activities which will promote the involvement of parents in the operation of the school, in consultation with the Principal.

To operate effectively as a Parents' Association you need to have mechanisms in place whereby you can establish the views of the parents and pupils on matters relating to the school. In this way you can select activities that will promote parental and student involvement.

While all parents of pupils of a school are members of the Parents' Association, the majority do not need to be involved in the day-to-day activities of the association. Usually the parents who are elected to the committee manage the responsibilities of the Parents' Association on behalf of the other parents. The formation of the committee is usually determined by the size of the school and the activities to be undertaken.

#### The Constitution of the Parents' Association is as follows:

#### 1. The Name

i. The name of the Association shall be the LORETO HIGH SCHOOL BEAUFORT Parents' Association hereafter referred to as the Parents' Association.

## 2. The Aims of The Parents' Association

- To Support the Christian message in the lives of the children, teachers and pupils attending Loreto High School Beaufort.
- ii. To provide a forum to inform and consult parents regarding school policy, plans and activities and to communicate parents' views on such issues to the school Principal. However, the Parents' Association will not be involved in matters relating to the internal administration of the school.
- iii. To encourage and facilitate the participation of parents in promoting the well-being and interests of the pupils of the school.
- iv. To work, through affiliation, with regional or national bodies representing parents where such affiliation would be in the best interests of the pupils, school and parents. The decision to affiliate to any such body will be at the discretion of the Committee.

## 3. Membership

All parents and guardians of pupils of Loreto High School Beaufort Grange Road Rathfarnham, shall be deemed to be members of the Parents Association.

#### 4. Executive Committee

- i. The business of the Parents' Association shall be carried out by an executive committee, hereafter called the Committee.
- ii. By unanimous approval, members of the Committee shall be elected for a period of **three** years. It shall not be possible to serve two consecutive terms on the Committee.
- iii. If a member does not attend three consecutive Committee meetings, without good reason, he/she will be deemed to have resigned from the Committee.
- iv. Each Year shall have two parents or guardians, as representatives on the Committee.
- v. In addition to the Year representatives, the Principal and another representative of the school shall be ex-officio members of the Committee with no voting rights.
- vi. In the event of a member of the Committee resigning or if a , the Committee may co-opt a parent/guardian to the vacancy until the next AGM.
- vii. At its first meeting the Committee shall elect, for a term of one year, Officers of the Association, namely a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary and Treasurer from amongst its members. A simple majority will determine the outcome of the election for those posts. In the event of a tie the matter shall be decided by the drawing of lots. The Officers may hold the positions for a maximum of one year if for any reason an officer is unable or unwilling to continue to act the Committee shall elect a replacement from amongst its members at the next available opportunity.
- viii. Committee meetings shall be chaired by the chairperson or by the vice-chairperson in the absence of the chairperson. If neither is in attendance the members present shall elect a chair for the meeting.
  - ix. The Secretary shall record the minutes of the meeting for approval at the next meeting.
  - x. The Committee shall hold at least one meeting each term.

- xi. Fifty percent of its membership shall constitute a quorum for any Committee meeting.
- xii. The Committee may, at its discretion, set up any sub-committee it deems necessary for specific purposes.
- xiii. All decisions of the Committee shall be decided by a simple majority of all members voting on an issue and in the event of a tied vote the Chairperson shall have a casting vote.

### 5. Annual General Meeting

- i. An Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of the Parents' Association shall be held before the end of October each year.
- ii. At least three weeks' notice of the date of the AGM shall be given, in writing, to the members of the Parents' Association. The notice shall include the agenda for the AGM.
- iii. Fifty members of the Parents Association shall constitute a quorum for the AGM.
- iv. A report on the activities of the Parents' Association and on its financial position shall be presented to the AGM
- v. Notification of upcoming vacancies on the Committee shall be circulated to parents and guardians in the years where vacancies exist at least three weeks before the AGM. Any parent or guardian interested in seeking nomination to the vacancy on the Committee Will be invited to submit their interest to the Chairperson of the Association on or before the AGM. Proposal and Seconding of the candidates will take place at the AGM.
- vi. Each parent or guardian shall be entitled to vote in elections to the Committee in respect of vacancies arising in the representation of a Year in which he/she has a child.
- vii. Any amendment to the constitution should be passed by a simple majority of those attending the AGM. Notice of any proposed amendments should be submitted in writing to the Secretary, not later than two weeks before the due date of the AGM.

### 6. Finances

- i. The Committee shall apply all membership fees and all other funds raised by it to further the aims of the Parents' Association. All funds include any surplus of income over expenditure. The Committee will endeavor to maintain a modest surplus at the end of each financial year.
- ii. The financial year for the Parents' Association accounts shall be 31<sup>st</sup> of August to 31 May. Annual financial accounts shall be prepared for each financial year and presented for the approval of the members of the Parents' Association at the next AGM.
- iii. The accounts shall make provision for expenses incurred and not yet paid, and income earned and not yet received.
- iv. A copy of the annual financial accounts shall be forwarded to the Board of Management once approved by the Parents' Association.
- v. The Committee shall prepare an income and expenditure plan for each year no later than 1st December of that year.
- vi. Cheques drawn on the Parents' Association account shall be signed by two signatories. Authorised signatories shall be the Principal and the Treasurer, or in the absence of the Treasurer, another nominated Officer of the Committee.
- vii. The Committee shall propose to the Board of Management the level of subscription fees for the following year for their approval.

## 7. Miscellaneous Provision

- i. An Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) may be called at the written request, of not less than forty parents of existing pupils in the then current school year. The request should state clearly the reason for the meeting. Such a meeting will be convened within 30 days of receipt of a properly constituted request. Fifty parents shall constitute a quorum for the EGM.
- ii. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 5.7, this Constitution shall be reviewed by the Committee at least every 5 years and the results of that review shall be presented to the subsequent AGM.
- In the event of the dissolution of the Association, all its assets shall pass to the Board of Management.

Prepared and Drafted by the Parents Association 2018 with a special thanks to Mr. Niall Hade.

# Committee members 2018.

Niall Hade

Sharon McNally

Sheree Comerford

Ann Cassin

Ciara Darker

Justine Lambe

Brenda Comerford

Eithne Tobin

Anna O'Shea

Cathy O'Brien

Connie Delaney

Siobhan O'Connor

Chairperson Sharon Mc Nally

Review Date: 2021